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Insurance Commissioner
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Chief Counsel
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MR. JOHNSON:

Okay.

get started. Good

We're going to

morning. Welcome

to the Pennsylvania Insurance

Department's Public Informational

Hearing on the tran
the proposed plan o
Saucon Mutual Insur
I"1l1l refer to as Sa

Pennsylvania mutual

saction involving

f conversion of
ance Company, which
ucon Mutual, from a

property 1nsurance

company to a Pennsylvania stock

property dinsurance

company.

I'm Steve Johnson,

Deputy Insurance Co
Office of Corporate
Regulation. I'm re
licensing and finan
including on site f
examinations of app
domestic insurance

non-domestic insura
230 continuing care

communities. My re

mmissioner for the
and Financial
sponsible for
cial oversight,
inancial
roximately 275
companies, 1,400
nce companies and
retirement

gulatory authority
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will assi
making a
of conver

of contro

the membe
responsib
that are

Daubert,

me . Jodi
in the ba
senior in
specialis

desk.

proposed

o eligible surplus 1lines

companies and risk retention
In addition, as Deputy
ner, I'm responsibile with
assistance of my staff for

w of all corporate

ons involving Pennsylvania
insurance companies. And I
st Commissioner Miller 1in
decision on the proposed plan
sion and corresponding change
1l of Saucon Mutual.

I would like introduce

rs of the department staff
ile for reviewing the file
here today with me. Amy

Deputy Chief Counsel next to

Frantz, Department Counsel

ck. And Cris Bybee, my
surance company licensing

t who is at the registration

The company filed the

plan of conversion with the

SARGENT'S COURT REPORTING SERVICE, INC.

(814) 536-8908




7:03:

42

:54

:56

:59

:01

:07

:09

:10

:13

;16

:17

:19

:21

122

124

126

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Department o
The plan was
under the In
Mutual-to-St
conjunction
Conversion,
Pennsylvania
corporation
approval to
capital stoc
consummation

referred con

request 1is t
individuals

controlling

Company upon
conversion a
acgqguisition

approval und
Company Act.
refer to the
conversion a

collectively

n September 2nd, 2014.
submitted for approval
surance Company
ock Conversion Act. In
with the Mutual-to-Stock
Saucon Holding Company, a
-domiciled stock
submitted a request for
acquire control of all the
k of Saucon Mutual upon
of the previously
version.
Included within the
he identity of three
anticipated to hold a
interest i1in Saucon Holding
completion of the
nd acguisition. This
filing was submitted for
er the Insurance Holding
The Department will
proposed plan of
cquisition filing
as the filing.

The Department published
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notice of the filing 1in the

Pennsylvania Bulletin on September 13,

2014. The notice invited interested
persons to write comments to the
Department about the filing. The
Department received three public
comments and one communication
indicating an intent to make a public
comment.

The filing was amended
twice on February 5th, 2015 and on May
7th, 2015. Public portions of the
filing and related documents have been
and remain available on the
Department's internet website,
WWW.lnsurance.pa.gov, and at the
Department's offices in Harrisburg.
In addition, there 1s an index of all
the documents that are contained in
the public filing.

Copies of the public
file index are available for
inspection at the registration table.
You may submit a prepaid request for

copies of particular documents by fax
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or by e-mail. The Government rate for
copying 1s 25 cents per page.

As I noted earlier, the
subject of the hearing today 1s the
proposed conversion of Saucon Mutual
and the corresponding acguisition
filing that reqguest the Department's
approval of the acguisition of the
capital stock of Saucon Mutual by
Saucon Holding Company upon
consummation of the conversion. The
purpose of today's hearing i1is not to
receive a --- not to reach a final
decision on the filing before the
Department. Instead, the purpose of
the hearing is to receive comments
from interested persons to aid the
Department in ultimately reaching a
decision on the transaction.

The Insurance Department
will make a decision based on upon the
standards set forth 1in the
Mutual-to-Stock Conversion Act, and
the Insurance Holding Company's Act.

The entire record of the filing,
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including the transcript of the
hearing, will be reviewed by the
Department before any final
conclusions are reached.

The Department will
closely consider any comments about
the filing presented here today. Once
again, no final decision will Dbe
rendered at the conclusion of today's
hearing. This is a Public
Informational Hearing. All interested
persons are 1invited provide their
comments, or raise gquestions for the
party's and the Department's
consideration. Comments and the
information gathered here today will
be considered along with other
material the Department has received,
as 1t continues 1ts review and
analysis of the filing.

Accordingly, this
hearing is being recorded by the court
reporter. The Department will review
the transcript of today's hearing as

part of the examination of the filing.
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A copy of the transcript will be
available on our website at
WWW.lnsurance.pa.gov.

All testimony from the
parties of the transaction will be
sworn. However, because of the nature
of today's proceeding, cross
examination or interrogation of
speakers will not be permitted.
Although Saucon Mutual may be asked
guestions by members of the general
public, it 1s not required to respond
to those guestions today.

The Department may have
guestions for Saucon Mutual,
representatives of Saucon Mutual
Holding Company. We would ask that
the company representatives respond to
these questions to the best of their
ability, but may supplement any
answers 1n writing. In fact, today's
hearing the Department will require
written responses to all guestions
raised during the hearing,

irrespective of whether they are
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raised by the public or by the
Department. And we'll make those
responses available on our website.

We will begin this
morning with a presentation by Saucon
Mutual, which will include a
presentation by its consultant,
Boenning & Scattergood. Then, we will
take a short break possibly, depending
on timing we may Jjust continue on.

And then after the break, the
Department may have gquestions for
Saucon Mutual or their representatives
from Boenning & Scattergood. Then the
public comment portion of the hearing
will begin.

Any individual wishing
to speak should sign up at the
registration table if you haven't
already done so. When speaking,
please indicate 1if you are speaking on
your own behalf. If you are speaking
in a representative capacity, please
identify your role and relationship to

the representative organization. Your
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remarks should be specific and related
to the filing that 1is before the
Department.

As noted earlier, any
public commenter may pose questions to
the company. Such guestions should be
also given to the Department in
writing. At the conclusion of the
public comment portion of the hearing,
the Department may have questions for
the representatives of Saucon Mutual,
or Saucon Holding Company.

At the end of the
gquestion and answer portion of the
hearing, if time permits, the members
of the general public may present any
additional comments. Then Saucon
Mutual will have the opportunity to
present a brief closing statement.
With that, we'll begin with the
presentation of the company.

MR. REGAN:

Thank you, Steve.

MR. JOHNSON:

Brian?

SARGENT'S COURT REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
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MR. REGAN:

Thank you and your
staff. Not only for holding this
meeting today, but for all the help
that you'wve given us over the past two
years as we've gone through this
process.

My name 1is Brian Regan.
I'm the Chairman and President of
Saucon Mutual Insurance Company. I've
been a policyholder and a Board member
for over 11 years. I'm a CPA by
trade. And I'm a shareholder in the
firm of Regan, Levin, Bloss, Brown and
Savchak in the Lehigh Valley.

My testimony today 1is
not to reiterate all the information
that we've supplied to the Department
and that the Department has on 1its
website. My purpose here today 1is
just to give a brief overview of our
proposed plan, of the process we went
through to arrive at this plan, and
why we feel it's the best plan for

Saucon and the future elements for
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Saucon to re-enter the insurance
business.

Saucon began in 1832.
It is a property and casualty
insurance company. We are somewhat
unigque 1in our primary practice of
perpetual insurance policy. Under
perpetual insurance policies, the
insured makes a one-time, refundable
deposit to the company. The company
therefore does not have annual
insurance premiums to offset expenses.
It uses these deposits to generate
investment income to offset the
expenses.

Due to the low interest
rate environment that we've
experienced, the Board put a
moratorium on i1issuing perpetual
insurance products in 2005. So for
the past ten years, we have not 1ssued
any perpetual insurance policies. In
fact, we've issued just a handful of
term policies in that time frame. It

should be noted that at the end of

SARGENT'S COURT REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
(814) 536-8908




:11

:11

:11

:11

11

11

:11

11

11

:11

:12:

:12:

:12:

:12:

:12:

:12:

:12:

:12:

:12:

12

12

12

12

227

132

: 34

: 35

138

:41

:43

:54

:54

:56

00

05

09

09

12

13

15

17

18

122

126

127

128

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

15

2007, our surplus was Jjust over $16
million. As of yesterday, we estimate
that our surplus 1is Just over $16
million. So you can see we'wve been
relativity stagnant for a long time.
The Board decided at
that point to engage the services of
Tony Latini of Boenning & Scattergood
and Connie Foster of Saul Ewing to
help us go through some strategic
planning to see what we could do to
get back into the insurance business,
to see what options or alternates we
may have. They brought a number of
strategies that we'll discuss, and
options, and we came to the conclusion
that the plan in front of the
Department now 1s the best for Saucon
Mutual. At this point I'd like to
hand the presentation over to Steve
Bajan, our CEO who will describe in
detail some components of the plan.

MR. BAJAN:

Good morning. Thank you

for the opportunity to present this
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testimony today. I am Stephen Bajan,
CEO of Saucon Mutual. And I will
attempt to explain differences between
perpetual and conventional term
policies, the calculation process we
went through to arrive at the
policyholder consideration, and the
process we undertook to ensure that we
had identified all eligible
policyholders and had proper contact
information. So when we get to the
point --- hopefully when we get to the
point after approval of the plan of
providing consideration to the
policyholders, that 1t's going to the
right place and the checks don't
eventually end up as cheating.

So Saucon 1is approved to
right dwelling property and
policyholder insurance policies. We
do so on both a term and perpetual
basis, primarily on a perpetual basis.
As Brian indicated, we've been dormant
for some time now. We've 1ssued no

perpetual policies since December of
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2005, and we've only issued nine term
policies since that same December 2005
date. No new policies of any kind
have been issued since our date of
record for this application of
August 27th, 2014.

As of the record date,
we had 369 perpetual policies and 25
term policies for a total of 394 of
them. Currently, we have 351
perpetual policies open and 22 term
for a total of 373. If our
application is approved and we execute
on the conversion, all 369 of the
policyholders in effect as of the
conversion date will receive
consideration. They will not be
eliminated just because they may have
cancelled their policies the interim.

Now, the difference
between a policy and a conventional
term policy fall in three particular
categories. First is the term of the
policy. A conventional term policy 1is

the insurance policy most all of us
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coverage 1s not increased for any
reason, there are no additional
payments made by the policyholder.
And upon termination of that policy
for any reason, that total deposit 1is
returned to the policyholder without
reduction for any losses or claims
that might have been paid over the
life of the policy. The total amount
comes back.

The third difference, in
addition to the term of the policies
and the method of payment for the
policies, 1s how the revenue 1is
generated by the company to offset
their operating expenses and claims
made under the policy. On the term
policies, those revenues come from
primarily from the premiums. There 1is
a minor amount from the float of the
premium, but it's almost all entirely
from the premiums themselves.

On perpetual policy, the
revenues are generated entirely from

the investment of that deposit. There
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are no other opportunities to seek any
other additional income from that.
It's entirely paid from the
investment, and as such we are subject
to the whims of the investment
markets.

Now, I'm going to move
to the consideration that we are
proposing to pay for perpetual and
term policyholders. I'll address the
perpetual policyholder first. There
are actually three components of
consideration that we're proposing
under the plan.

First i1is a cash payment
determined by the longevity of the
policy. By longevity, I mean what are
the exact number of days that have
elapsed from the time the policy was
accepted until the closing on the
conversion. We take those exact
number of days, multiply it by a
factor of 27.87 cents to arrive at
that --- and round that to the nearest

dollar to arrive at that cash payment
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component of the consideration. Our
calculations for the aggregate of all
perpetual policyholders on that basis
is $1,197,000.

The second component of
the perpetual policyholder
consideration is a return of the
deposit. That deposit I referred to
earlier in my testimony, that 15 times
the annual premium that stays on the
deposit with the company, we are
proposing to return 15 percent of that
deposit to the policyholder. And it's
important to note that in spite of
that 15 percent return, the policy
coverage remains as is, unreduced by
that. So 1n essence, we are
supporting that full coverage with
85 percent of the original deposit.

The aggregate we
estimate will be returning to the
perpetual policyvyholders under the
return of deposit component 1is
$334,000. That has some value 1n 1t,

in that any policyholder who has

SARGENT'S COURT REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
(814) 536-8908




:19:

:19:

:19:

:19:

:19:

:19:

:19:

:19:

:20:

:20:

:20:

:20:

:20:

:20

:20

:20

:20

:20

:20

:20

:20

:20

:20

:20

05

08

11

13

17

:21

124

227

:29

129

:31

: 36

: 38

:41

143

146

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

22

cancelled since the record date
already received this full deposit
back, so we won't be getting the 15
percent. We'll only get the initial
cash component.

The final component 1is
actually a policy benefit as opposed
to a cash benefit. The majority of
Saucon's homeowner's policies come
with an inflation adjustment
endorsement, which provides for
increases to offset --- increases and
coverage to offset inflation by four
percent per vyear. Now, as it stands
now, the perpetual policyholder 1is
then billed for that, for a deposit
commensurate with that four percent
increase.

Under our plan, we are
proposing to continue that inflation
endorsement as 1s now, four percent
per year. However, we will no longer
be charging the policyholder for it.
So it's a policy benefit that won't

put cash in the policyholder's pocket,
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however it will resort --- it will
involve him paying less money out
going forward over the years.

I"1ll now turn to the
consideration calculated for the term
policyholders. For the 22 term
policyholders we have, their
compensation will consist of two cash
payment components. The initial one
is 1dentical to the perpetual
policyholders, and that's that
longevity payment I referred to. And
that's 27.87 cents per day times the
number of days the policy has been in
effect. The aggregate on that is
$31,978 for the policy or term
policyholders active as of date of
record.

The second component of
the term policyholder compensation 1is
15 percent of the current annual
premium. This results in an aggregate
of approximately $1,800. That number
is subject to variation depending on

how many policies are still open at
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the time. To 1l1llustrate, for a
ten-year term policy with a $500
annual premium, their cash payment
would amount to $1,017, and their
premium based cash compensation would
amount to $75, for a total of $1,092.

Now, Jjust to summarize
the total consideration picture, and
these are the same numbers that are on
file with the Department appear on
your website. The aggregate payment
for all policyvyholders, term and
perpetual, will be approximately
$1,564,000. That assumes a 731
closing. Obviously, we're already
past 731, so there will be additional
longevity payments in that number.
However, there may be some reduction
in the terms of return of deposits for
policies that may have cancelled 1in
that interim period.

As regards the inflation
adjustment endorsement, the calculated
present value of the cash flow of

those inflation adjustment
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endorsements over the next 20 years 1is
approximately $500,000. Again, that's
not money in anybody's, any
policyholder's pocket. However, 1it's
their payments that they will be able
to forego going forward, but still
maintain their current insurance
coverage.

With that, that explains
the consideration and the differences
between the policies, and I'll turn it
back over the Brian.

MR. REGAN:

Thank you, Steve. As I
discussed earlier, in mid-2012 we
engaged with Tony Latini from Boenning
& Scattergood and Connie Foster from
Saul Ewing. We realize that after a
ten-year hiatus of not writing
insurance premiums that in order to
get back in the insurance business, it
was going to take an incredible amount
of time and resources for us to move
forward.

The Board sat down and
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require a significant investment.
We're going to make sure that we're
able to generate additional funds 1if
needed. And we also want to maintain
the company as a locally owned and
operated organization that we have
held. We've been there for 180 years.
We want to make sure that it stays
locally owned and operated with local
employees and being a good corporate
citizen.

So with that in mind
went through wvaries options under the
mutual to stock alternatives. We
looked at subscription right
conversion. But in dealing with our
consultants we realized that very few
policyholders actually choose to
participate in the subscription
rights. Knowing our policyholders we
thought wvery few, if any, would
actually choose a subscription rights
policy. With our lack of track record
for the last ten years, 1t would be a

relatively risky d1investment for
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someone who 1is not aware of the
operations.

We also looked at the
mutual holding company structure. We
realize that again it would probably
be a subscription right of some type
and 1t's also a two-step process that
would be costly and cumbersome and we
thought confusing to our
policyholders. So the plan we ended
up with is the plan that's before vyou
today, the alternative plan. We felt
that this met the objectives that the
Board set out to do. We're going to
have a loyalty payment, so each
policyholder will receive some
meaningful cash consideration.

As Steve said, we're
going to waive the inflation guard.
Currently as property value 1increases,
the policyholder 1is assessed an
additional deposit for that increase.
We're going to waive that additional
deposit in the future for all current

perpetual policyholders that have the
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inflation guard. We're going to
contribute to a Lehigh Valley
community foundation. We're going to
set up a donor-advised fund. We're
putting a half million dollars 1into
this fund and we committed to fund
$100,000 a year for each subsequent
yvear for the next five years. Again,
this is not only for the local
community but maybe indirectly for
former policyholders that are still in
the community.

As you know, Steve, we
met with you and your team at least
twice over the past few years to vet
our plan and go through what we needed
to do and what the best course of
action was. Your team was very
helpful and we do appreciate that.

The Board unanimously approved the
plan of conversion in August of last
year. And we filed with Department in
September. As a result of some
comments back from the Department, we

amended our plan to make sure that we
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had all the necessary criteria
required. Currently we think the plan
meets both the requirements and the
standards of the Pennsylvania law.

As we said, our
consideration for the policyholders,
we're giving just less than $1.6
million in cash consideration to the
policyholders. We currently have less
than 400 policyholders, so on average
they're going to receive somewhat less
than $4,000 a piece for making our

charitable contribution to Lehigh

Valley Community Fund. Now, 1t's a
donor-advised fund. It's going to be
totally independent of us. We do have

the ability to advise the foundation
of where we'd like to see the
charitable contributions made, but
it's certainly up to their discretion
on where it's being made.

We're waiving our
inflation guard. And that was
estimated --- the present value of

that 1is estimated to be about
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$500,000. So each policyholder 1is
also to receive, 1in addition to the
cash consideration, other policy

enhancements. All this is done with

31

the policy remaining enforce. There's

no change in the policyholder's
coverage. There'll be no change.
They will have no additional premiums
as a result of 1it. The company will

have additional capital and, again, a

new resurgence 1in life to re-enter the

insurance market to make sure that we
can stay in business another
180 years.

This plan we think will
allow us to re-enter to the insurance
business. We've been doing some
market research and we feel that
there are some unmet needs 1in the
property and casualty dinsurance
business. We feel that we could
partner with some other insurance

companies in the state and maybe use

some of our capital on a guarter share

basis to generate some premium volume.
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This plan also again allows Saucon
Mutual to maintain its local presence.
We'll be a locally owned and operated
organization in the Lehigh Valley as
we have been for the last 180 years
and continue to do so. At this point
I'd like to hand it off to Steve to go
through some of the details on the
calculation of the consideration.

MR. BAJAN:

Okavy. What I want to
address here --- thank you, Brian ---
is the process we went through to
identify and verify our policyholder
base, as well as confirm the contact
information et cetera. A perpetual
policy i1is a very, very long-term
commitment. And over time there's not
a lot of communication between the
policyholder and the company. People
tend to get --- contact information
tends to change over that time period
and the Board was very adamant that we
confirm all eligible policyholders and

make sure no one 1is left without the
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compensation that we previously ---
that I previously described as
calculated.

We engaged 1in a
three-tier process to do this. First
we send out a written survey to all
policyholders to confirm ownership of
the property, confirm their address,
their phone number and, vyes, even
their e-mail address which a lot of
these people don't have. We do have
an elderly policyholder base. After
sending that out certified return
receipt, we then addressed all those
for whom we didn't get a response or
from whom we got the mailing pieces
returned by the post office. Just
anecdotally, i1it's amazing how many
people absolutely refused to accept a
certified mail piece just out of fear
that it's something tragic to them.
We had our eyes open on that.

But we began making
phone calls to those we had phone

calls --- or could find phone numbers
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on . And we were able to confirm a
large number of that portion. Beyond
this, we did in-person visits to all
remaining policyholders who had not
confirmed. At the conclusion, we were
able to confirm all but one of our 394
policyholders.

Just a little background
on that one. We have determined that
this was a renter's policy for an
individual in a senor care facility.
We eventually found out he had passed
away a number of years earlier. The
senior care facility had never
returned any of our proxy mailings.

So as far as we were concerned he was
just continuing and just choosing not
to vote his proxy. We then dug up an
old obituary, identified one daughter
who lived in a remote town. We've
been attempting to contact her,
haven't gotten any response from her.
However, we will continue to persevere
and we're confident we will by the end

of --- by the closing on this we will
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have found here and will account £
all our policyholders and certainl
they'll all get the consideration
they're due.

As I indicated, the

Board was very adamant that we not

or

y

leave anybody behind in doing this.

So we're very happy with the way -
the results of that. We'd 1like it
be a hundred percent but we're rea
close right now. That's the proce
we engaged in.

MR. REGAN:

to

1

S S

35

Thank you, Steve. We're

aware that if the Department does
approve our plan, we still have a
of work to do.
meeting, we'll send out our pProxy

notices. And 1f two-thirds of our

lot

policyholders approve, then with the

We'll have our special

Board's approval we'll move forward to

the conversion. At this point I'd
like too turn the presentation ove
Tony Latini to discuss his role an

his opinions that he has given to

r to
d
the
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today's he
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strategic
decision t
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MR. LATINTI:

Good morning. Pleasure

with vyou. My name is Tony

am a managing director at

Scattergood. Boenning

Saucon Mutual financial

ervices and a fairness

connection with the

n that is the subject of

aring. I have submitted

stimony that addressed four

First the experience

of Boenning

ocood as well as myself. A

the financial

ing performed relating to

alternates analyses and the

o proceed forward with the

nversion. We also included
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I provide investment banking services
to insurance companies and other
companies. I've worked in corporate
finance and investment banking since
1987. My educational background
includes a Bachelor of Science and
Economics from the University of
Pennsylvania and I hold the Chartered
Financial Analyst designation.

In terms of the
financial advisory services that we
provided to Saucon Mutual, there were
really three engagements or phases to
engagement that began back in 2012.
The first was a strategic alternatives
engagement in which Boenning assisted
Saucon's Board in a review of its
alternatives. It could assist the
Board in meeting the criteria and
goals that they had established.

The second assignment
was a further assessment, refinement,
a development and ultimately the plan
to raise capital to mutualize. The

third engagement related to the
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issuance of the fairness opinion 1
connection with the proposed
transaction.

So for the first two
beginning back in 2012, Boenning
working with the company to
development the goals and objectiv
against which they could judge var
alternative. Mr. Brian Regan
expounded upon them in his remarks
I include them in our written
testimony. After establishing tho
or criteria or goals, Boenning the
assisted the Board in developing a
list of potential alternatives tha
could meet those goals and objecti
as well as to help evaluate each o
those alternatives.

The alternative
structures that we came up with
including a downstream stock holdi
company, a separate holding compan
mutual holding company conversion,
subscription rights conversion and

alternative plan conversion. And
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of those alternatives was examined
against the criteria and the goals
that the Board had set out. The
alternative plan conversion was the
one that maximized the number of goals
and objectives that the Board set
forth.

I think it's important
to note that the analysis and planning
exercises with the Board that I Jjust
summarized very briefly took place
over the course of over a year. It
included meetings with the Insurance
Department, with the Board of
Directors, numerous refinement,
discussions, presentations. And I
think all the conclusions were reached
after, not only a significant amount
of time and discussion, but also
reflecting on the company's financial
condition and what 1its prospects might
be.

Turning to the fairness
opinion. I'"ll summarize the written

testimony that was submitted in
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August 27, 2014. The fairness
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And in addition, Boenning opin
the plan met certain specific
prescribed in the Act relating
fairness to the members. Now,
summary of a fairness opinion
qgualified by the full opinion
try to summarize briefly what
in reaching our conclusions.
The first task 1
completing the fairness opinio
be to understand what the fina
consideration was to the
policyholders. We understood
of the date of the Board's ado
the plan, the members would re
approximately $1 million in ca

They would receive an allowanc
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increase 1in coverage under the
inflation adjustment endorsement with
no additional costs. So while that
was not directly a cash payment, it
was an avoidance of cash payments by
those policyholders as long as they
owned the policy and that Saucon would
contribute a million dollars to a
charitable foundation to serve the
local community as a proxy for
contribution of members that were no
longer with the company who wouldn't
be receiving a direct consideration.
Current members, as
Mr. Bajan indicated, would be rewarded
financially for the longevity of their
policy as well as size of their
policy. We also noted in reviewing
the consideration that there was some
non-cash compensation or benefits to
the policyholders, including the fact
that their coverage wouldn't be
diminished and that their new
organizational structure could improve

operations and provide access to
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capital which would benefit the
policyholders via i1increased operations
and surplus.

So after understanding
what the consideration was, Boenning
first reviewed other alternative plan
transactions that occurred. We
reviewed three alternative plan
conversions that had been approved and
implemented in Pennsylvania, Hanover
Mutual Fire, Philanthropic Mutual and
Select Risk Mutual.

In the case of Hanover
and Philanthropic, the policyholders
were given an increase in their
coverage for free for a year in
connection with the conversions.
Boenning estimated that those
increases were worth somewhere 1in the
neighborhood of 30 hours to $75 per
policyholder, depending on which
company yvou're talking about there.
And that multiplied by the number of
policyholders, it resulted in

consideration in the aggregate
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somewhere in the $360,000 to $400
In the third case,
Select Risk, the policyholders
actually received shares 1in an
insurance holding company. And t
received about 18 percent of the
insurance holding company due to

fact that that was in private, we

44
, 000.

hey

the

weren't able to determine a dollar

value associated with that.

So relative to thes
other transactions, the proposed
compensation that we reviewed to
members was more valuable based o

form of the consideration, it was

e

the

n the

cash

and other things, the aggregate value

to be received, say $360,000 or

$400,000, I noted relative to the §$2
million or so that Saucon was
proposing and the value to be received
per member. Again, I think Mr. Regan
noted an average of about $4,000 per
member relative to say $30 or $75 or
something like that. In the case of

Select Risk, we weren't able to
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determine exact dollar amount.

So after reviewing those
transactions we also reviewed an
assessment of the transaction relative
to the criteria which are specified in
the Act. It was our understanding
that the Commissioner could approve a
plan of conversion that did not
involve offering subscription rights
to the policyholders if the plan did
not prejudice the interest of the
members, was fair and equitable and
was not inconsistent with the purpose
of intent of the Act. Boenning
detailed on several pages 1in 1ts
fairness opinion analysis and in 1its

written testimony a number of reasons

for each of --- for why each of those
criteria were met. I won't repeat
them here. It is in our written
testimony as well. But taking all

that into account, Boenning concluded
that the financial consideration to
Saucon's policyholders was fair and

equitable from a financial point of
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provisions of the
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compliance with the

Act that I noted.

So in summery, we felt

as a result of the

transaction, the

policyholders at Saucon would receive

a substantial direct payment. They

would remain policyholders 1in a

company that was poised to re-enter

the insurance business in a way that

it could improve the viability of the

company and grow policyholder

protection and provide access to

outside capital.

would occur at no

policyholder and no

insurance policies.

your time.

MR.

And all of this

cost of the

change in their

I thank you for

JOHNSON :

That

testimony?

MR.

ends vyour

REGAN :

That

MR.

ends our testimony.

JOHNSON :

Just For the record each

of the three presenters here submitted
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formal written statements that will be
part of the transcript as exhibits.
They are also copies in the back if
anybody would like a copy of the
formal written statements made by the
three presenters.

I don't have any
guestions right now. I think you
covered all the high points from the
filing that we've had for a year and
had a lot of back forth. Amy, do you?

ATTORNEY DAUBERT:

No, I do not.

MR. JOHNSON:

With that we'll move for
public comment. Do you guys want to
head back off the table and take vyour
name cards with vyou? And then we have
anybody interested in making any
public comments, this 1s formal time
to do so. So we'd like you to sign up
and come forward, if yvou'wve signed up,
I'll take you now. Did you sign up as
a presenter?

MR. STELLAR:
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Yes.

MR. JOHNSON:

Okay. Come on up.
Again introduce yourself and whether
you're here as a policyvholder,
representative or Jjust a general
public. Have a seat at the table
please. Good morning. You may
proceed.

MR. STELLAR:

Good morning. My name
is Anthony G. Stellar. I'm a
policyholder for Saucon Mutual for
many a years. I also represent three
other policyholders here today.

MR. JOHNSON:

In what capacity? Are
you an attorney?

MR. STELLAR:

They are policyholders.
They are my children on my policy.

MR. JOHNSON:

Okay. Thank you for the
record.

MR. STELLAR:
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The bottom line is I'm
listening to a number of things that
are being said here today. I'm
listening about they're going to waive
our inflation guard payment and stuff
like this. The bottom line to this
policy when I purchases this policy
was very simple. We purchased a
perpetual policy. Okay? The
perpetual policy was one payment for
life. That also included at the time
the inflation guard, which was also
included in that. That was not an
extra payment. Saucon Mutual came to
the Insurance Commission because they
were 1in dire straights, if I'm
correct, to get that approval to add
that to our policy that we pay the
extra inflation guard. Before we
never did that. Okay?

Also, I sent a letter to
the Insurance Commission dated
October 2nd, 20114. I sent 1t to the
Insurance Commissioner, Michael

Consedine. I'"ve never received a
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response, but I'd like to read the
letter.

Dear Commissioner
Consedine. I'"'m all member of Saucon
Mutual and I write in opposition to
the plan of conversion adopted by the
company Board of Directors.
Pennsylvania has a well established
methodology for the mutual-to-stock
conversion of a mutual insurance
company. The methodology 1s grounded
in acknowledgment that the
policyholders have the highest rights
of any constituency and it grants
policyholders the first right to
purchase stock in a converted mutual.

This method has been
used successfully in the conversion
0ld Guard Insurance, Mercer Mutual
Insurance Company, Penn Millers Mutual
Holding Company and Educators Mutual
Life Insurance Company. The plan
adopted by the Board of Directors of
Saucon denies any right to purchase

stock in Saucon Mutual.
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When I proceed further,
this was dated October so the numbers
might be different than what we've
heard today. I want that understood,
please. Instead the plan proposed by
the Board only offers Saucon members
with an aggregate payment to members
of slightly more than $1 million and a
contribution of $1 million to a
community foundation which has a
Saucon director on 1its Board. The
right to purchase stock 1s granted
solely to insiders. I'd like to
emphasize that.

They propose to purchase
all the stock of Saucon for
approximately $3.25 million. As of
June 30th, 2014, Saucon reported
statutory surplus of approximately
$16.3 million. After the distribution
to members in the community
foundation, probably slightly more
than $2 million, Saucon will have a
surplus of over $14.3 million, which

is significantly higher than what I
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mentioned. Thus upon investing $3.25
million, the directors will completely
own a company with surpluses of
approximately $16.85 million, $14
million plus $3.5 million --- $2.5
million, expenses of $700,000.

This is grossly unfair
to members and erroneous act of
self-dealing by a Board of directors
in violation of their fiduciary
duties. It simply cannot be
permitted. I together with others
expect to propose a plan of conversion
that will be fair to policyholders and
constituents with the Pennsylvania
Mutual-to-Stock Conversion Act. To
that end, we have demanded a
policyholder 1list from the company so
that we can communicate our opposition
to the current plan, as well as
propose a plan that 1is fair to all
members. For now, we wish only to
register our strong objection to
management's proposed plan.

We understand that the
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MR.
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Anthony G.
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Stephen. That

you and to Brian
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ever received a
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all you did receive

the company and you

of 1tems to be able

policyholder 1list.

the criteria that yo

through to get the p

So that was all give

correct?

Well, Jjust to

ss, sir. First of

a response from

were given a list

to get to the

So you were given

u would need to go

olicyholder list.

n to you; 1s that

MR. STELLAR:
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We don't remember
getting any of that.

MR. JOHNSON:

I think that's on the
record --- on the website.

MR. STELLAR:

I don't feel we received
any of that to be honest with vyou.

MR. JOHNSON:

Well, go back because I
was a part of making sure you got the
logistics.

MR. STELLAR:

I never got a response
to this letter, though. Never.

MR. JOHNSON:

From the company you
got the logistics, I believe. We'll

bring the

company back up.

Because

that's the website.
MR. STELLAR:
If you could guide me
MR. JOHNSON':
We take public comment.
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We don't respond to the --- our
response will be to take all the
information ---

MR. STELLAR:

Okavy. I follow vyou.

MR. JOHNSON:

-—-- and then we'll make.
--- the Commissioner will make a
decision. That will be the response
to all the public comments we receive,
is 1t Commissioner's order, whether
she denies or approves the
transaction. That's how the process
work.

MR. STELLAR:

Okavy. I understand,
yes. And then some of my other
concerns, Stephen, are very simple.
Are we an 1nsurance company Or are we
an investment company? We spend a lot
of money or our Board of directors.

We spend a lot of money on our
president. We spend a lot of money on
other things. I'd like to know and

I'd like this in consideration, how
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many policies are we selling? We're
not selling hardly anything. What

we're making our money on 1is

investments. Our investments, 1t
seems to me --- I'm not an expert and
I'm not a smart man by no means. It

seems to me the investments are
carrying the company, not the
insurance --- not the policies and
things of that nature is carrying the
company.

It looks to me that we
have a Board of directors and we have
people who are running the company and
we're just funneling money into that
for them to oversee our 1nvestment
portfolio. My suggestion is 1if we
don't have an insurance company, WwWhy
don't we just liguidate the insurance
company and pay our policyholders save
all of us a lot of money and
aggravation? But are we --- that's
the biggest gquestion I think you have
here. Are the policyholders being

treated fairly? Are there a lot of
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backdoor things

are not going to
And two, are we
or are we simply
which benefits
and the

Mutual?

going on

an i1nsurance

the

people in

57

here that we
be treated fairly.

company
an investment company
Board of directors

charge at Saucon

I think these two things
have to be looked upon very, very,
very carefully. If we're not selling
any policies and we're not taking ---
I think I looked at the losses here of
like $80,000 and our expenses are like
$50,000. I think we really got to

look at 1is this

do we have an
needs
policyholders,
the

look into those
think as far as

with my

time.

MR.

smoke
insurance
really help that's
that's
policyholder?

two
right

comments.

and mirrors or
company that
owned by the
truly owned by
I think we should
questions and I
now, I'm done
I appreciate your

JOHNSON :

Let me

ask you this one
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gquestion because I believe you said,
and I want to get it on the record
correctly, sir, that you would be for
a subscription rights transaction. Is
that one of your statements that vyou
made?

MR. STELLAR:

I'm sorry?

MR. JOHNSON:

That you would be in
favor of the a company doing a
subscription rights and offering the
stock of the company to 1its
policyholders.

MR. STELLAR:

Well, right now, I have
no letters. I don't know what's going
--- the policyholders do not know
what's going on right now. Is there
anything we could purchase stock?

MR. JOHNSON:

I'm asking you, I
thought you made that statement.

MR. STELLAR:

As far as selling the
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company?

MR. JOHNSON:

Yes.

MR. STELLAR:

If we're not an

insurance company, why don't we sell

the

the

it b

not?

you

very

it's

C

e .

I

ompany? And why don't we give
money to the policyholders and 1
Are we an 1nsurance company
I think the numbers will show
don't think we are.
MR. JOHNSON:
Again, I think we have
robust record. Just generally,

a very robust record on the

website, but I appreciate your

comments because that's why we're he

today, to hear both the pros and the

cons

from the public on the

transaction, so thank vyou, sir.

MR. STELLAR:

Okay.

ATTORNEY DAUBERT:

Thank you.

MR. STELLAR:

59

et

or

a

re
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Thank you very much.

MR. REGAN:

Thank you.

MR. JOHNSON:

Who else i1is signed up?
Over here. Please.

ATTORNEY BLOCH:

60

My name is Steven Bloch.

I'm with the firm of Bailey and

Glasser, LLP. I represent a couple of

policyholders presently and
potentially more in connection with
the proposed conversion. What I'd
like to do, if possible, I believe I
heard you state this before, was pose
some gquestions and perhaps engage 1in
some 1ingquiry with the representatives
on behalf of Saucon and Boenning &
Scattergood. If this is not the
appropriate context to do that then
let me know.

MR. JOHNSON:

I will but go ahead.

ATTORNEY BLOCH:

So my primary concern
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d interest would be to ask some
estions so that we could get some

re information about the proposed
nversion. I'd like to proceed with
at right now if I could and save any
blic comments perhaps for later or
written form. May I pose some
estions?

MR. JOHNSON:

Go ahead.

ATTORNEY BLOCH:

Okay. Actually, before
begin with that, I would note that I
nt a letter back in June to Ms.
ggenbaum, who 1s one of the counsel
Saul Ewing representing Saucon in
nnection with the conversion. And I
quested a number of materials that

re submitted by the company 1in

nnection with the proposed
nversion. The problem was that they
re submitted under seal. These were

cuments that would perhaps provide a
ndow into what the purported ongoing

continuing operations are going to
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be on the converted insurance company
that's going to resume 1insurance
operations in earnest. Pro forma
balance sheets, business plans, et
cetera, three-year projections. I was
told by counsel that those were
confidential and proprietary trade
secrets and would cause the company
competitive harm 1f they were provided
to me as a representative of the
policyholders.

I'll put aside my
editorializing about what I think of
the merits of that statement. But I
was also referred to the Insurance
Department to make a request under the
Right to Know law. My understanding
of that i1is that the Insurance
Department effectively cedes the
determination of what constitutes a
trade secret to the company. So 1
guess what I'm posing to you at this
point is whether or not it would be
possible to see those particular

financial projections and pro forma
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statements and financials with respect
to the new company, whether they would
be maintained as confidential and
proprietary trade secrets on behalf of
the company or whether the
policyholders who have to vote on this
plan of conversion can actually see
those documents so that we can make an
informed assessment as to whether this
alternative plan of conversion that's
proposed as opposed to the traditional
form of conversion offering
subscription rights in a new ongoing
invigorated company that's going to
resume operations in earnest 1is
possible.

MR. JOHNSON:

I will tell vyou
generally, the Department's position
is business plans and forward looking
information are confidential in nature
because of the forward looking and
because they do talk about company's
plans and can be a competitive

disadvantage. So it's the general
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position of the Department to agree
with --- and we can't agree or
disagree, and I'll let Amy talk about
the Right to Know Act in Jjust a
second. It is our determination. The
company can tell us they believe it
is, but i1it's our determination at the
Department whether we believe it 1is or
it isn't. And we'll have discussions
with the company and we have the right
to litigate if we need to, we usually
don't go that far, 1f we had to 1f we
believe it should be public and the
company still wants to fight as to
they believe i1it's confidential.

So it's ultimately a
Department decision on whether or not
we believe things are confidential in
dealing with our companies. Which I
have to deal with an ongoing basis.
And confidentiality on certain
information is critical from a
regulatory standpoint. If I'm to
regulate companies who feel that they

can give information to the Department
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and not have competitors looking over
their shoulders, Jjust generally 1in the
big picture. But you have rights as a
citizen, and that's the Right to Know
Act in Pennsylvania. I"ll let Amy
just discuss generally the provisions
around that.

ATTORNEY DAUBERT:

Right to Know law does
permit you or your clients to make a
request for the information to us. In
this case, 1f you were to request
information that had been designated
as confidential by the company, we
would be required under the law to
give the company notice of that. That
is part our regqguirement under the law.
And also, as Steve said, we do make a
determination whether we think 1it's
confidential or not.

If in response to a
request we make a determination that
is 1t confidential, we will deny the
request. In that case you or your

clients have a right of appeal. And
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if the information designated by the

company 1is confidential, they

also

have the right to make their case to

Office of Open Records.

ATTORNEY BLOCH:

I understand. Maybe I

66

didn't ask the guestion the right way.

I'm familiar from having read

Right to Know Act what it provides

what the various permutations

guess what I was asking i1s whether

the
and
are. I
the

Insurance Department at this point is

willing to provide for policyholders

who have to vote on this plan

conversion the opportunity to

of

review

those materials that were provided

under seal in connection with
proposed plan of conversion.

MR. JOHNSON:

At this point we

the

believe

the record that's under seal 1is

correct and should be considered

confidential from the Department's

standpoint.

ATTORNEY BLOCH:
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So this is a company

which ---.
ATTORNEY DAUBERT:
There was one thing I
did want to point out, however. In

that if this Department does then
approve this, there will be discloser
materials. And we have not reached
any decision about what information
would be appropriately put in the
discloser materials for the
policyholders to vote on.

ATTORNEY BLOCH:

Okavy. Well, I guess, as
I said before, I'd like to pose some
guestions to the representatives. The
first gquestion is for Mr. Bajan. Am I
pronouncing that correctly?

MR. BAJAN:

It's Bajan (corrects
pronunciation) .

ATTORNEY BLOCH:

Pardon me. You
mentioned that the company, and it's

fairly obvious from anyone who's Dbeen
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watching the operations, that the
company's been dormant. And it
appears that as Mr. Regan was saying,
it's been dormant for about ten vyears
now. Why 1is that the company hasn't
been selling policies for the past ten
years when i1t's maintained a surplus?

MR. JOHNSON:

He's not going to answer
right now. We're going to take all
your guestions and then we'll have
them come back up and see 1f they want
to answer them today. Or if not, they
will have to answer them in writing as
i said in my opening remarks, as part
of the report after this hearing.

ATTORNEY BLOCH:

The policyholders
would like to know how the particular
formula was determined as far as the
cash consideration payment that's
being made to both perpetual and
non-perpetual policyholders. In other
words, the formula is stated in the

plan and a formula was stated here
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today, but that formula 1is grounded in

nothing as far as we can tell.

seems to be an arbitrary figure

out of the air. In particular

seems to be a figure that has

And 1t

picked
, 1t
shifted

and has been backed into based upon

the shifting consideration that's been
paid to --- that's being proposed to
be paid to policyholders here.

I would also note that

the $500, 000 charitable contribution,

which initially was a million
seems to me to be antithetical

interests of the policyholders

dollars,

to

the

here

who are being provided with what

anyone might term as nominal
consideration in exchange for
extinguishing their rights in

company. That's rights to vot

this

ey

control the company to a certain

to

extent. Their rights to dividends,

and although the plan says that

dividends haven't been declared for

years, one of the reasons why

I pose

to guestion as to why the gquestion has
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been dormant and not doing anything
under the current regime for all these
years, but 1f the company 1s going to
resume operations in earnest as they
seem to be eager to do, then 1it's
certainly feasible that dividends
would be declared on a going forward
basis. And these policyholders are
being asked to extinguish those rights
to dividends in connection with this
plan.

Most glaringly of course
is it the almost $17 million surplus
that this company holds and has held.
That is listed on all the financials
and I think is pretty well accepted to
be the property, at least in part, of
the policyholders who are members of
this mutual company. In fact it's the
policyholder surplus account as
denoted on all the financial
statements.

The three individuals
who are going to take the lion's share

of the ownership of this company are

SARGENT'S COURT REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
(814) 536-8908




:07

:07

:07

:07

:07

:07

:07

:07

:07

:07

:07

:08:

:08:

:08:

:08:

:08:

:08:

:08:

:08:

:08

:08

:08

:08

:08

:08

: 36

: 38

:41

144

$47

:51

:52

:52

:56

:57

:59

01

02

04

07

09

11

13

17

:20

122

124

125

129

:30

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

71

now going to seize and appropriate
that surplus. The rest of the Board
of directors and one member of
management who 1is unnamed are going to
be the other minority investors in the
deal. They can then do with the
company what they will, whether that
be sell or liguidate, whether that be
merging it into another company or
simply resuming operations and
declaring dividends for the benefit of
themselves.

Either way this 1is
self-dealing transaction by an insider
set of Board of directors who have
been running the company, or rather
not running the company, letting it
lay fallow for ten years declaring a
moratorium while at the same time now
taking control of the company through
what they say 1s an alternative plan
of conversion. But what really this
is, 1is an ersatz traditional form of
conversion where they're taking the

subscription rights that belong to the
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giving the

policyholders cash compensation under
a formalized alternative plan of
conversion here. So they'll be
seizing this company surplus and the

value of the company to do with it

what they will in a clearer

self-dealing transaction.
I don't think that the

member information statement provides

any clarity about what I've just

discussed. It also doesn't provide

any clarity with respect to what

Mr. Latini from Boenning & Scattergood

was saying about the discussions and

the analysis that Boenning &

Scattergood went through with the

Board of directors in contemplating

and considering all the strategic

alternative plans or transactions.

None of that 1s in the member
information statement. In fact, I'd
like to sit with Mr. Latini and

actually explore all of those

strategic alternative that they
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I don't think there's
any basis either in the Boenning &
Scattergood fairness opinion or the
plan of conversion and certainly no
description in the member information
statement about why this is fair and
equitable to the policyholders or how
their membership interests have been
given due benefit and consideration in
contrast to what they're being asked
to extinguish as far as their rights
and interests as longtime members of
this company are concerned. I think
one of the undercurrents or really
what was expressly stated here by each
of the three representatives is this
company has been dormant for years and
they want to resume operations.
There's been no explanation as to why
it's been dormant. There's been no
explanation as to what 1t means to
want to resume operations or what
that's going to look like so that the
policyholders can make an informed

assessment. But I think it's clearly
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worth noting that the surplus here and
the continuing operations of the
company have been funded by the
substantial deposits from perpetual
policyholders who like my client have
been policy --- clients have been
policyholders for decades. And
they've had, Jjust like every other
insurer, 1n particular PNC insurers,
they've had the use of those funds for
investment purposes for years.
Effectively interest-free loans.

So to stand up here and
I don't want to say --- well, to stand
up here and trumpet the fact that
there i1is a purported loyalty payment
going back to the policyholders, I
think is an overstatement. And I also
think that the fact that policyholders
are being given 15 percent back of
their original deposit, which is their
own money, again, which constitutes an
interest-free loan that's provided
through the company, doesn't go

anywhere near or make anywhere close
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the effort that's needed to provide
appropriate compensation to these
icyvyholders should there be an
ernative plan of conversion that's
roved and that they have to wvote

And with that, I'll end my

comments for today. Thank you.

Add

MR. JOHNSON:

Okavy. Thank you.
itional people come on up.

MR. AVRIL:

Thank you for taking

commentaries. I'"'m James Avril

(ph
pol
200
Wel
por

spe

onetic) . My wife and I have been
icyholders of Saucon Mutual since
5. I'm a retired partner of
lington Management where I was a
tfolio manager and security analyst

cializing in banks and insurance

companies for 20 years. It seems to

me

the

res

are

for

from an investment point of view
notable feature of this

tructuring i1is that the principals
paying 20 percent of book wvalue

what appears to be a healthy, 1if
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moribund property casualty company.
They will, as I see it, accomplish the
same thing that you would accomplish
if you were making a startup and had
to contribute 100 percent of Dbook
value in order to support an ongoing
business i1in the insurance area.

In fairness, 1it's
apparent --- there's something called
sunken capital and it's the capital
that they've made obligations and the
obligations one could argue
particularly with the decline in
interest rates that they've noted over
the last 30 years, that the capital
that's on the books for statutory
purposes 1s very likely exaggerated to
some degree. I don't think 1it's
exaggerated to the degree of
80 percent. So I mean, as you look at
what, you know, all the paperwork
that's around this deal, 1t seems to
me the conflicts of interest are
irresolvable. They have nine Board

members who are taking part in this

SARGENT'S COURT REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
(814) 536-8908




:16

:16

:16

:16

:16

:17:

:17:

:17:

:17:

:17:

:17:

:17:

17

:17

:17

:17

17

17

17

17

17

17

17

17

17

:46

148

:51

:54

:57

00

02

06

10

12

17

19

:21

123

127

129

132

:35

:36

:41

144

:46

:49

:51

:54

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

78

investment deal in which they're
paying 20 percent of book wvalue. Now,
I think it is interesting to note that
of the nine Board members, only three
are taking a significant part. That
is to say, I guess, six of them are
investing on the order of $15,000 a
piece. So let's see 1f that's right.
3.2, ten percent --- okay. Yeah.
Maybe $30,000 a piece or $40,000.

There are three folks
who are willing to take part in this
startup who are paying a million
dollars. You know, as always folks
--- people on the inside have better
knowledge of what's there and what
they're paying for than we can have on
the outside, yvou guys I guess are
somewhere in between. I mean, the
fact that not everybody said --- you
know, that all nine of them didn't say
we really want to take part in this,
suggests that there's a certain amount
of risk as indeed there is in any

startup business. But I think the
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conflict of interest is there's no way

that they can get --- and I would
encourage the Department to give the
policyholders the same opportunity
that the Board has given themselves.
That is to say, pay a dollar a share
or whatever the price is going to be
for the ongoing entity.

And yvou know 1t may be
that everyone will say, no, we don't
want to do that. But you know, I
could probably be convinced to pay
quite a bit of stock at 20 percent of
book wvalue. So any way, that's
virtually all I have to say.

MR. JOHNSON:

Are you a perpetual or

term?

MR. AVRIL:

We're perpetual, yeah,
2005. And you know, the reason I

invested in it is i1t's really a
remarkably a good product, at least
from the point of the view of the

policyholder. And we were originally
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with Green Tree, and Green Tree sold
out and discontinued business, and so
we switched over to Saucon Mutual.
But we're very satisfied in terms ---
now, we haven't had any claims, so
there it 1is. That's good too.

MR. JOHNSON:

Yes. Thank vyou. It is.
How are vyou. It's been a while.

MR. BARBER:

It has been a while. My
name is Charles D. Barber. My wife
and I are policyholders. I'm also the

president of a licensed property
casualty company 1in Pennsylvania
called the Green Tree Perpetual
Assurance Company. I would say that
when we discontinued our business
operations with permission of the
state on February 7th of 2005, that
during the period from December to
that date, December of 2014 to the
ultimate termination date, we
forwarded a number of our

policyholders to Saucon without
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commission. There's also an agency
associated in holding company with my
company. Without commission without
request for commission because we
thought that it was a fine at that
time a 170-plus-year-o0old mutual
company proud, had a proud tradition
of respecting policyholder rights and
taking care of policyholders.

Just for background, the
Green Tree Perpetual Assurance Company
traces i1ts origins to the Mutual
Assurance Company which was founded in
Philadelphia in 1784. In 1802 the
concept of the perpetual policy was
developed by the Mutual Assurance
Company. Previously to that they
issued seven year policies. At that
point they i1ssued perpetual policies.
This subsequently has been adopted Dby
Saucon which came in 1832 prior to ---
and by other companies 1like Baltimore
Equitable, which currently rights in
Pennsylvania. They were founded in

1795. And the Philadelphia
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Because 1t's my position
that what happened was all of a sudden
this sleepy company that had a lot of
surplus all of a sudden had a lot of
policyholders. That was not meeting
their desire. That, i1in fact, they did
not want to have any policyholders
which is why at the end of the vyear,
with a lot of additional policyholders
coming from the Green Tree Perpetual
Assurance Company, they struck a
moratorium against 1it. And it's my
understanding based on discussions
with former chairmen of the Board that
it was primarily coming from the
current chairman who decided they
shouldn't write anymore perpetual
business.

When I attended the
policyholder meeting, the annual
meeting in April, I asked the gquestion
--- I did a very quick calculation
based on --- you know, I've Dbeen
involved with perpetual companies

since 1984, so I probably knew more
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about perpetual business I think than
anyone. And my feeling was that they
had a loss ratio somewhere below 32
35. The comment came out of the head
table which included the president and
the chairman and I believe the
secretary, that in fact the loss ratio
was lower than 35. I thought this was
remarkable since when you usually have
a company, the problem that usually
plagues companies, perpetual ---
excuse me, any property casualty
company 1s that your loss ratio 1is too
high and you pay a high commission
rate and you don't make any money.

So I said to them, why
is it that i1if you're making --- 1if vyou
have a loss ratio that's so low, you
should be writing more perpetual
business because 1f you brought more
business, you would have more
investment income and, therefore, you
would spread those larger policies
over a larger base. And since your

loss ratio i1is so go, it doesn't make
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any since not to write this business.
And then I got comments that I really
could not rationally repeat to you.
So anyway, I feel that
they had a good company. They have a
phenomenal product and they have
adeqguate surplus. When I started the
Green Tree, I had $3 million of
surplus and I had $22 million or $20
million to $22 million of deposits.
They have $16 million of surplus and
$2 million of deposits. It makes no
sense not to be writing this business,
writing perpetual in this company.
And in fact I met with the prior
chairman because we have a fully

automated system and could service

this company. I have no full-time
employees. They don't have --- they
may have full-time employees. I

currently service over a thousand
policies with $5 million worth of
deposits which is substantially larger
than what they have. And I have no

full-time employees.
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So it begs the gquestion,
why are they doing this? And why are
they abandoning this product for, as
Mr. Bloch brought up, for a business
plan that none of the policyholders
know about. A.M. Best has already
issued a notice that they're moving
this company from a stable rating ---
they're maintaining i1it's A rating but
they're moving it from a stable to a
negative implied status. So how far
does the negative status go before
policyholders lose their ability to
have a good product?

So I'm guite mystified
by the whole thing. I'm mystified by
the valuation. I would love to know
what criteria Boenning & Scattergood
used. They said that they did their
study based on the Board's criteria.
Well, what 1s that criteriav Is that
criteria maintaining control of the
organization irrespective of the
policyholder needs? As we all know,

you know, vyvou look at the statement
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and 1t says policyholder surplus, and
yet what it doesn't say 1s $14 million
of that 1is actually the Board of
director's surplus. This is the
policyholder's surplus and it should
be there to create a strong company
and not to benefit the individual
wealth of an insider group who has
violated their fiduciary
responsibilities, it would appear.
Thank you.

Well, let me see if I
have any qgquestions. Well, number one,
I'd like to see what the strategic
objectives were. I think as
policyholders, we need to know that
since Mr. Latini indicated that his
judgment on this being fair was based
on that criteria. And I'd like to
know --- I mean, I will find this out.
I'd 1like to know of the 351 current
policyholders that are perpetual, I
would tend to guess that more than
half of them came out of the Green

Tree Perpetual Assurance Company. I'd
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like to know that but probably

management can't produce that. Thank
you.

MR. JOHNSON:

Okavy. Thank you. Any
additional public comment before I ask
the company to come back up? Seeing
none, we'd ---.

BRIEF INTERRUPTION

MR. JOHNSON:

Okavy. We'll take a
short break and let the company
contemplate some of these things.
We'll take a ten-minute break.
SHORT BREAK TAKEN

MR. JOHNSON:

I asked the company to
come back up and if you'd 1like to
comment. I want you to make a little
comment 1f you could for me today.
The one policyholder, Anthony --- 1I
forget your last name.

ATTORNEY DAUBERT:

Stellar.

MR. JOHNSON:
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89
Anthony Staller

mentioned --- if yvou could tell me a
little bit about the history of this
inflation guard. He was talking that
at one time it was part of the policy
and then it changed to you were able
to add --- to go out and get
additional deposit. Do you have some
history on what happened with the
inflation?

MR. BAJAN:

This was before my time,
so I'm a little fuzzy on the exact
dates, but I believe it was
approximately 2008, the policy
documents were changed. We switched
from an ISO to AAIS document and the
essence of the transaction was that
the ISO --- all the old --- the entire
book of policies was cancelled, but
they were offered a new ---. And this
was all done in conjunction with the
Department. A new policy, d1dentical
policy was issued with inclusion of

the payment for the inflation guard.
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It was a new endorsement but it was
essentially the same amount going
forward. At that point is when, from
my understanding, the Department
authorized the collection of the
proportionate --- the additional
deposit for the increased coverage
going forward.

MR. JOHNSON:

Okavy.

MR. REGAN:

Steven, I would like to
address a few comments.

MR. JOHNSON:

Sure. Your opportunity
is here.

MR. REGAN:

I certainly can't
address all of them, but I would 1like
to address a few. One it was
mentioned why did we stop writing
perpetual insurance. Well, Mr. Barber
was correct when Green Tree went out
of business in '05, we did obtain a

number of policyholders from the old
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Green Tree. The deposits that we
received --- and I'm going by memory
so I'm not sure. It might have been

in the range of a million dollars.
However, when we received the
reinsurance premium shortly after vyou
ran, our premium went up $100,000 due
primarily to the increased deposits
from those new policies.

At that point we
realized that the reinsurance cost was

going to exceed the investment return

we'd likely receive. We put a
moratorium on the policy --- selling
policies at that point. We then

engaged actuaries to come in and have
them take an independent look at our
policies to see 1f they were
profitable. And the determination at
that point is that the policy was not
profitable under our current rate
structure. And the multiple we'd have
to change in order to make it
profitable was not going to be a

realistic premium that people would
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pay. We felt there would be no market
for it.

The second point that
many seem to have issue with is 1t
subscription rights. Again, given our
policyholders the right to purchase
stock is something we feel our
policyholders would not avail
themselves of. We were looking to
give something to every policyholder,
a meaningful consideration, not Jjust
having the sophisticated view with the
option to purchase the stock. So we
felt the subscription rights would
really not benefit the wvast majority
of our policyvholders, and that's why
we decided to go with the alternative
conversion rather than subscription
rights.

Also, having a number of
shareholders that would be outsiders,
we felt would have some undue pressure
on the company to have immediate
returns on these investments. We take

a very long-term view of our business
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and we know that i1it's probably not

goin
not
some
do t

thin

g to be paying dividends. It's

going to be profitable for qgquite
time. We have a lot of work to

0O reenergized this company. And I

k the Board has acknowledge that

and we've all signed on as this 1s a

long-term investment. That's all.

gues
resp
writ
gene

of,

MR. JOHNSON:

There's still some other
tions that I'm going ask you to
ond to at least formally in
ing. But if yvou could just
rally comment today on the concept

you know, vyvou'wve been dormant so

to speak for ten years and the comment

bein

have

g why? Can you Jjust give us some
again, all these gquestions you'll

opportunity to respond formally

in writing, vyvou have time to think

abou

afte

curi

t it, as part of the public record
r this hearing. But I'm kind of
ous on -—--.

MR. REGAN:

One of the reasons, our
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staff
that

diffi
kick

a CEO
movin
move

Again
and k
profe
And t
conve
use t

more

recor
asked
up to
anymo

will

ry reason 1is because of lack of
. Steve is our fourth CEO in
time frame. So we've had
culty in getting the business
started because of that. We get
in but by the time they get
g, 1t seems 1like they decide to
on and then we have a new CEO.
, without the ability to attract
eep qualified insurance
ssionals, it makes it difficult.
hat was another reason for the
rsion. We were hoping we could
hat to attract and retain some
qualified insurance people.

MR. JOHNSON:

I will ask you again to
nd formally in writing after the
of the transcript comes out so
an put something into the public
d to all the guestions that were

today. With that, I'll open it
if anybody else wants to make
re additional public comment. I

say don't forget that no matter

94
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what the Commissioner does, 1f the
Commissioner does decide to approve
this transaction, this 1s one it
doesn't get executed until a vote of
two-thirds of the policyholders, which
is very unusual in insurance corporate
transactions that many times don't
need a vote of the policyholders
themselves to execute let alone
two-thirds. So just a reminder that
that portion of the Act still needs to
occur even after the Commissioner
makes a decision.

But I will ask that,
again, that the applicant review all
these questions and respond to the
Department in a public response.

Okavy. Seeing no other guestions or
comments, on behalf of the Department
I'd 1ike to thank everybody for their
participation here today. As I noted
earlier, a transcript of this hearing
will be posted on the Department's
website when it becomes available.

I'm told it may be as early as Friday,
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so at least hopefully early next week
we'll have it up on our website.

Additionally, the
applicant will be regquired to file
written responses to all guestions
posed to i1t today. Such responses
will also be posted to the

Department's website. Once the

96

transcript 1s made available and after

all guestions and responses are
compiled, the Department will reopen
the matter for public comment for an
additional 15-day period of time.
Again, thank yvou everybody and safe
travels. We're adjourned.

* * * * * * * *

MEETING CONCLUDED AT 10:48 A.M.

* * * * * * * *
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stenographic reporter, that the
foregoing proceedings were taken
stenographically by me, and thereafter
reduced to typewriting by me or under
my direction; and that this transcript
is a true and accurate record to the

best of my ability.
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